
Woodbury County Zoning Commission Agenda Page 1 of 2 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY  
ZONING COMMISSION 

 

Monday, September 23, 2024 at 5:00 PM 
The Zoning Commission will hold a public meeting on Monday, September 23, 2024 at 5:00 PM in the 
Board of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting 
will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public 
meeting and public hearings on the agenda may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the 
Conference ID: 638 086 537# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in 
person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA 

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

4 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS 

» PUBLIC HEARING (ACTION ITEM): FOR PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE MAP 
AMENDMENT (REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION (AP) TO THE 
AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE) ZONING DISTRICT (PARCEL #884726200002).  SUMMARY:  
Consideration of the application to rezone from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District to the Agricultural 
Estates (AE) Zoning District for a 1.14-acre portion of the property located in the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 26, T88N 
R47W (Woodbury Township) in the County of Woodbury and State of Iowa.  The property is known as GIS Parcel 
#884726200002.  Petitioner Applicant(s): Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Sandra K. Baker - Applicant), 1997 Carroll 
Avenue, Sergeant Bluff, IA 51054 & Jimmie Lee Colyer & Renee T. Colyer (Owners), 1650 Old Highway 141, Sergeant 
Bluff, IA 51054.   

» PUBLIC HEARING (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF NUCLEAR ENERGY 
FACILITIES TO BE INCLUDED AS PART OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 
ORDINANCE. SUMMARY:  Consideration the addition of Nuclear Energy Facilities as a land use option in the 
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance.  The hearing will include topics of how to approach the permitting of nuclear 
energy facilities.  Possible options include to amend the Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses (Section 3.03.4) by 
adding Nuclear Energy Facilities as a permitted allowed use or a conditional use in all or select the county zoning 
districts.  Amendments may also be discussed pertaining to the addition of new sections pertaining to nuclear energy 
facilities, definitions, the renumbering, and reorganization of content within the zoning ordinance.   

» REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE 
INSTALLATION AND USE OF THREE 100’ WIND TURBINES (PARCEL #884420300005). 
SUMMARY: Consideration of the Conditional Use Permit application by L & K Tabke Holdings, LLC (Kathy Tabke) 
for the installation and use of three (3) 100’ wind turbines to reduce the electrical costs on the farm.  The property is 
designated as Parcel #884420300005 and is located in T88N R44W (Wolf Creek Township) in Section 20 in the N ½ of 
the SW ¼.  The proposed location is about 5.2 miles southeast of Moville, IA which is on the south side of 195th Street 
and east of Jasper Avenue.  The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and “Electric 
wind generator (Private use)” is classified as a “conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance.  Applicant(s)/Owner(s): L & K Tabke Holdings, LLC (Kathy Tabke), 3112 195th St., Moville, IA 51039. 

 
 

1



Woodbury County Zoning Commission Agenda Page 2 of 2 
 

» REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE 
INSTALLATION AND USE OF A 250’ SELF-SUPPORT WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS 
TOWER TO REPLACE AN EXISTING TOWER (PARCEL #874720400004). SUMMARY: 
Consideration of the Conditional Use Permit application by Andrew Bobrytzke on behalf of American Tower LLC and the 
Bradley J. Kobold Trust who have filed the conditional use permit application to request to construct a 250’ self-support 
wireless communications tower to replace an existing tower from the area.  The property is designated as Parcel 
#874720400004 in T87N R47W (Liberty Township) in Section 20 in the SE ¼ of the SE ¼.  The proposed location is 
about one (1) half mile west of the Salix, IA which is on the north side of 260th Street and west of Barker Avenue.  The 
property is located in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District and “Telecommunication towers” are classified as a 
“conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance.  Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Andrew 
Bobrytzke on behalf of American Tower LLC, 10 Presidential Way, Woburn, MA 01801 / Bradley J. Kobold Trust, 211 
7th Street, Sergeant Bluff, IA 51054. 

» INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION CONTEMPLATING 
DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS AS PART OF A NEW ORDINANCE REGARDING 
CARBON PIPELINES.  SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on August 
27, 2024 voted to direct the Planning and Zoning Director to work with Planning and Zoning, the Board of Adjustment, 
and Legal Counsel in order to make a recommendation contemplating decommissioning requirements as part of a new 
ordinance regarding carbon pipelines. 

 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

7 STAFF UPDATE 

8 COMMISSIONER COMMENT OR INQUIRY 

9 ADJOURN 

  

 

2



PACKET CONTENTS 

PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 

PUBLIC HEARING (ACTION ITEM): FOR PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE 
MAP AMENDMENT (REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION (AP) TO 
THE AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE) ZONING DISTRICT (PARCEL 
#884726200002).   

PUBLIC HEARING (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF NUCLEAR 
ENERGY FACILITIES TO BE INCLUDED AS PART OF THE WOODBURY 
COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE. 

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR 
THE INSTALLATION AND USE OF THREE 100’ WIND TURBINES (Parcel 
#884420300005).  

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR 
THE INSTALLATION AND USE OF A 250’ SELF-SUPPORT WIRELESS 
COMMUNICATIONS TOWER TO REPLACE AN EXISTING TOWER (PARCEL 
#874720400004).  

INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION 
CONTEMPLATING DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS AS PART OF A NEW 
ORDINANCE REGARDING CARBON PIPELINES.  

3

4

6

33

47

74

130



 

1 

 

Minutes - Woodbury County Zoning Commission – August 26, 2024 
 
The Zoning Commission (ZC) meeting was called to order on August 26, 2024, at 5:00 PM in the Board of 
Supervisors' meeting room, located in the basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, 
Sioux City, IA. The meeting was also available via teleconference. 
 

Meeting Audio: 
 
For a detailed account of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Zoning Commission’s 
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

• County Website: https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/ 

• YouTube Direct Link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ggkPBerPnWE 
 

 
Members Present: Barb Parker, Corey Meister, Chris Zant 
Staff Present: Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Attendees: Michael Montino, Dan Bittinger 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Chair Chris Zant called the meeting to order at 5:02 PM. Tom Bride and Jeff Hanson were absent. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
Motion by Meister to approve the July 22 minutes. Seconded by Parker. Approved 3-0. 
 
DISCUSSION AND PLANNING PROCESS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY TO BE CONSIDERED 
FOR ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE (INFORMATION / 
DISCUSSION ITEM) SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, at their July 2, 2024 meeting, 
directed the Zoning Commission to explore the possibility of nuclear energy in the county. This discussion focused 
on the next steps for work sessions and public hearings.  Dan Priestley outlined that establishing a nuclear power 
plant is a highly regulated process, with extensive site studies required to determine suitability. Michael Montino 
from Woodbury County Emergency Management, who studied nuclear energy at Georgetown University, shared 
his knowledge of nuclear power plants. He explained that these plants generally operate using pressurized boiling 
water to generate steam, and proximity to a water source is crucial to maintain cooling levels and prevent core 
meltdowns.  Montino discussed the importance of considering factors such as drought, flooding, and earthquakes 
when selecting a site. An Emergency Planning Zone extending 50 miles around the plant would be necessary, 
affecting neighboring counties. Although nuclear energy could take up to 30 years to fully implement, it is essential 
to plan for future energy needs as older coal plants are retired. Repurposing these sites for nuclear power could 
reduce the need for eminent domain.  Priestley emphasized that this is an exploratory phase, and the county has 
not yet received significant public feedback. He suggested that establishing a conditional use permit could 
demonstrate the county’s openness to nuclear energy development. Future work sessions, public hearings could 
be scheduled to explore the issue further. 
 
INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEM ABOUT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ 
CONSIDERATION OF CHANGES TO THE COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION 
SYSTEMS (C-WECS) (INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEM) SUMMARY:  
Following a petition from the public at the 2024 Woodbury County Fair, the Board of Supervisors, on August 6, 
2024, directed staff to review and potentially revise Ordinance #56, which governs commercial wind energy 
systems.  This discussion provided information on the upcoming review process.  Dan Priestley reported that the 
County Attorney’s Office is currently reviewing revisions to the ordinance, particularly concerning setbacks between 
participating and non-participating properties, decommissioning requirements, and setback waivers. These 
revisions aim to address safety concerns, such as lighting and fire risks. Public hearings will be held to gather input 
from the community. 
 
 

4

https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ggkPBerPnWE


 

 

 

2 

 
HOME OCCUPATION SIGNS ZONING REGULATIONS REVIEW (INFORMATION / 
DISCUSSION ITEM) SUMMARY: The Zoning Commission reviewed home occupation sign regulations to 
determine if any changes are needed. Research shows that Woodbury County’s policies are consistent with those 
of other Iowa counties, with a few counties allowing slightly larger signs. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA   
None 
 
STAFF UPDATE 
At the August 27 Board of Supervisors meeting, the Supervisors are expected to direct the Planning & Zoning 
Director to collaborate with the Board of Adjustment, Zoning Commission, and legal counsel to recommend 
decommissioning requirements as part of a new ordinance regarding carbon pipelines. Additionally, the Board of 
Adjustment has deferred its decision on a conditional use application for a data center/bitcoin mining facility for 35 
days. The applicant is expected to provide additional information at the rescheduled September 4 meeting. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENT OR INQUIRY  
None 
 
Motion to Adjourn: 
Motion by Meister to adjourn. Seconded by Parker. Motion carried 3-0. The meeting adjourned at 5:53 PM. 

5



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – SEPTEMBER 18, 2024
ZONING ORDINANCE MAP AMENDMENT (REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION (AP) TO AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE) 

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Sandra K. Baker Rev. Trust 

(Sandra K. Baker – Applicant) 
/ Jimmie L. and Renee T. 
Colyer (Owner)

Application Type: Zoning Ordinance Map 
Amendment (Rezone)

Current Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Requested Zoning 
District:

Agricultural Estates (AE)

Current Use: Bare Ground, Path to Field
Proposed Use: To be added to Baker’s Acres 

Lot 1
Average CSR Rating: 40.53
Engineer/Surveyor: Alan Fagan, 712-539-1471
Attorney: Joel D. Voss, 712-222-4105
Pre-application Meeting: June 26, 2024
Application Date: August 20, 2024
Stakeholder Notification:
Neighbors’ Notification: September 9, 2024
Legal Publication: September 12, 2024
Zoning Commission 
Public Hearing:

September 23, 2024

Board of Supervisors 
Public Hearings:

October 8, 15, 22 all at 4:45 
PM

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 884726200002
Township/Range: T88N R47W (Woodbury)
Section: 26
Quarter: NW ¼ of the NE ¼ 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Not in floodplain (Zone X)
Property Address: No address
Legal Description:
PART OF THE N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 OF SECTION 
26, TOWNSHIP 88 NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST OF THE 
5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, 
IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT 
THE N.W. CORNER OF LOT 1, BAKER’S ACRES, AN 
ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE 
S.0°00’19”E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 
FOR 267.10 FEET TO THE S.W. CORNER OF SAID 
LOT 1; THENCE N.55°43’07”W. FOR 390.29 FEET; 
THENCE N.0°00’19”W. FOR 40.00 FEET TO THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4; 
THENCE N.88°42’30”E. ALONG SAID NORTH LINE 
FOR 322.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
CONTAINING 1.14 ACRES.   SUBJECT TO AND 
TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS, 
RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS.

NOTE:  THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE 
N.E.1/4 IS ASSUMED TO BEAR N.88°42’30”E.

CONTENTS
Summary
Aerial Map / Survey Excerpt
Applications / Attachments
Plat of Survey
Purchase Agreement
Legal Description
Proposed Ordinance Amendment
Evaluation Criteria
Legal Notification
Public Comments
Stakeholder Comments
Supporting Documentation

SUMMARY
The Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Applicant: Sandra K. Baker) and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer (Owners) have submitted an application for a zoning 
ordinance map amendment to rezone a portion of the property (Parcel #884726200002) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) District to the Agricultural Estates 
(AE) District. The applicants seek to rezone a 1.14-acre portion of this parcel, which will be split and combined with Lot 1 of the Baker Acres subdivision through the 
Woodbury County Assessor’s combination process.  A survey conducted by Al Fagan Land Surveying P.C. provides the legal description of the portion of land to be 
conveyed to the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust. This 1.14-acre triangular portion is not eligible for development as a standalone lot because it does not meet the 
requirements of the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance. In the purchase agreement, Baker acknowledges that the property being acquired "is not a legal lot for 
building purposes and must be combined with their existing adjacent parcel, described as Lot One (1) of Baker’s Acres." The rezoning is requested so that the new 
parcel’s zoning matches that of Lot 1, facilitating the combination into a single parcel for tax purposes.  This proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City 
Journal Legals Section on September 12, 2024.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a September 9, 2024 letter about the September 23, 2024 
Zoning Commission public hearing and have been requested to comment.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have 
been notified and have been requested to comment.  No objections were received from the stakeholders.  Based on the information received and the requirements 
set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve this 
proposal.

AERIAL MAP SURVEY EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  
Staff recommends approval.  Suggested Motion:  Motion to recommend approval to the Board of Supervisors as proposed.

SUGGESTED MOTION
Motion to recommend approval of the Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE on a portion of Parcel #884726200002 to the Woodbury County 
Board of Supervisors with the condition that the remaining portion of the said parcel be combined with either of Colyer’s remaining parcels via the Woodbury County 
Assessor.

6



2 

APPLICATIONS (MULTIPLE DUE TO MULTIPLE PARTY INVOLVMENT)

7



3 8



4 9



5 10



6 11



7 12



8 13



9 14



10 15



11 16



12 17



13 18



14 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
PART OF THE N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 88 NORTH, RANGE 47 WEST OF 
THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
BEGINNING AT THE N.W. CORNER OF LOT 1, BAKER’S ACRES, AN ADDITION TO WOODBURY 

COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE S.0°00’19”E. ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 FOR 267.10 FEET 

TO THE S.W. CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE N.55°43’07”W. FOR 390.29 FEET; THENCE 

N.0°00’19”W. FOR 40.00 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4; THENCE 

N.88°42’30”E. ALONG SAID NORTH LINE FOR 322.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
CONTAINING 1.14 ACRES.   SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS, 
RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS. 

NOTE:  THE NORTH LINE OF SAID N.W.1/4 OF THE N.E.1/4 IS ASSUMED TO BEAR N.88°42’30”E. 

19



15 

Figure 1 - Draft - Subject to Changes throughout the review process. 

20



16 21



17

EVALUATION CRITERIA
The Zoning Commission shall base their recommendations and the Board of Supervisors shall base their decision on any requested amendment 
of the zoning district map on the following criteria:

Conformance with the goals and objectives set forth in the approved general development plan for Woodbury County including the 
future land use map.

There does not appear to be any conflicts with the Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040. 
(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf).  
This area is designated as rural residential on the future land use map thereby illustrating that this request is compatible with future land 
use goals and objectives.  This rezone is not expected to change any existing land use other than transferring ownership from one party to 
another.

Compatibility and conformance with the policies and plans of other agencies with respect to the subject property.            

There does not appear to be any conflicts with the policies and plans of other agencies based on the information received. 

Consideration of the Corn Suitability (CSR) of the property.                 

22



18 

Compatibility with adjacent land uses.                 

The rezone to AE is compatible with the area residential uses.  The AE Zoning District retains much of the land use characteristics that are 
offered in the AP Zoning District.  The major difference between the two is that AE allows for more than two houses in a quarter-quarter 
section.  Additional homes in the area should not be adversely impacted by this change in zoning designation as this portion will be rezoned 
to the same designation in which they reside.   

Compatibility with other physical and economic factors affecting or affected by the proposed rezoning.

There does not appear to be any other additional compatibility issues with this location. 

Any other relevant factors.

As noted in the summary, the applicants seek to rezone a 1.14-acre portion of this parcel, which will be split and combined with Lot 1 of the 
Baker Acres subdivision through the Woodbury County Assessor’s combination process.  A survey conducted by Al Fagan Land Surveying 
P.C. provides the legal description of the portion of land to be conveyed to the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust. This 1.14-acre triangular 
portion is not eligible for development as a standalone lot because it does not meet the requirements of the Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinance.

23



19 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION 

24



20 25



21

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing:

9 

Notification Letter Date: September 9, 2024

Public Hearing Board(s): Zoning Commission & Board of Supervisors

Public Hearing Date: September 23, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 0

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY 
OWNER(S)

MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS

Jimmie Lee Colyer and 
Renee T. Colyer

1650 Old Hwy 141 Sgt. Bluff IA 51054 No comments received.

James E. Waddell, 
Joseph F. Waddell, and 
Judith Scheer

3183 Tyler Court Sioux Falls SD 57103-
6562

No comments received.

Bradley R. Jochum, 
Angela M. Jochum, 
Timothy Ryan 
McWilliams, and Stacey 
L. McWilliams

2498 Carroll Ave. Salix IA 51052 No comments received. 

Trustees of the Sandra K. 
Baker Revocable Trust

1997 Carroll Ave. Sgt. Bluff IA 51054-
8042

No comments received.

Alexis M. Moore and 
Dylan M. Moore

2616 So. Cornelia 
St.

Sioux City IA 51106 No comments received. 

Richard G. Speed and 
Cindy S. Speed

2009 Carroll Ave. Sgt. Bluff IA 51054-
8042

No comments received. 

Wendel Real Estate, LLC 26638 Wirt Plaza Waterloo NE 68069-
5860

No comments received. 

Iowa Natural Heritage 
Foundation

505 5th Ave., Ste. 
444

Des 
Moines

IA 50309 No comments received.

Richardson Family 
Farms, LLC

421 E. Main St. Lawton IA 51030 No comments received. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments received.
CITY OF ANTHON: No comments received.
FIBERCOMM: No comments received.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments received.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments received.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments received.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received.
LONGLINES: No comments received.
LUMEN: No comments received.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments received.
MILLER TOWNSHIP: No comments received.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the attached proposed rezoning application for MEC electric and we have; No conflicts. –

Casey Meinen, 9/4/24. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments received.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments received.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments received.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request.  NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 9/10/24.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments received.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments received.
WIATEL: No comments received.
WINNEBAGO TRIBE: Thank you for your Section 106 correspondence regarding this project. While it has been determined that 

this project will not impact any identified sites, it is situated on or near land historically inhabited or traversed 
by our ancestors. Should any findings arise, please reach out to THPO Sunshine Thomas-Bear at (402) 257-

26



22 

5587 or via e-mail at sunshine.bear@winnebagotribe.com. Should you have any inquiries, do not hesitate to 
contact our office. – Gayla Whitewater, 9/3/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No issues here. – Daniel Heissel, 9/3/24.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have no concerns with the proposed zoning change.   It would appear to be consistent with the adjacent 

land zoning and use. – Mark Nahra, 9/11/24. 
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments.  Thank you. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 9/3/24.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this proposed rezoning request. 9/5/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments received.

27



23 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

28



24 

ZONING MAP

29



25 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA
Not in floodplain.  No data to report.

30



26 

SOIL MAP(S)

31



27

SOIL REPORT(S)

ELEVATION MAP

32



33



DISCUSSION AND PLANNING PROCESS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY TO BE CONSIDERED FOR 
ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE (INFORMATION / DISCUSSION 
ITEM) SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on July 2, 2024 voted to direct the 
Zoning Commission to begin the process of exploring nuclear energy as a potential energy option in Woodbury County.  
This information item is for a discussion on how to proceed with future work sessions and public hearings.  
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Initial Information about Nuclear 
The following is provided for initial informational purposes.  The goal is to examine both standard nuclear power plants and small 
modular reactors as potential energy opportunities in the unincorporated areas in Woodbury County.   

Nuclear Power Plant –  
- A nuclear power plant is a thermal power station that harnesses energy from nuclear fuel fission. Here’s how it works: the 

heat released during fission boils water, producing steam. This steam drives a turbine connected to a generator, ultimately 
producing electricity.  

Small Modular Reactors (SMR) – 
- Type of advanced nuclear reactor designed to be smaller in size and capacity compared to traditional nuclear reactors.
- Characteristics:

o Small Size.  SMRs have a power capacity of up to 30 MW per unit, which is about one-third of the capacity of 
conventional nuclear reactors.

o Modular Construction.  These reactors are designed to be factory-assembled and transported to the site for 
installation.  

o Flexibility.  SMRs can be deployed in single or multiple modules, making them suitable for a variety of application, 
including industrial use and remote areas with limited grid capacity.

o Safety. Many SMR designs incorporate passive safety features, which rely on natural physical processes rather than 
active controls to ensure safety.  

Articles Links: 
- Nuclear Power Plan Licensing Process 

o https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/fact-sheets/licensing-process-fs.html
- Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards 

o https://scp.nrc.gov/
- Governing Legislation 

o www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/governing-laws.html
- Fact Sheet: Biden-Harris Administration Announces New Steps to Bolster Domestic Nuclear Industry and Advance America’s Clean 

Energy Future 
o https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/29/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-

new-steps-to-bolster-domestic-nuclear-industry-and-advance-americas-clean-energy-future/
- Without a plant currently operating in Iowa, does nuclear energy have a future in the state?

o https://www.weareiowa.com/article/tech/science/climate-change/nuclear-energy-in-iowa-future-developments-midamerican/524-
aaed2ac4-7c3b-406a-a84b-c6e356b181ee

- Newly Signed Bill Will Boost Nuclear Reactor Deployment in the United States
o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/newly-signed-bill-will-boost-nuclear-reactor-deployment-united-

states#:~:text=President%20Biden%20signed%20the%20Fire,t%20seen%20since%20the%201970s. 
- What is a Nuclear Microreactor? 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-nuclear-microreactor
- Micro-reactor Pilot Program 

o https://www.eielson.af.mil/microreactor/
- Project PELE Mobile Nuclear Reactor 

o https://www.cto.mil/pele_eis/
- NRC Dockets Construction Permit Application for TerraPower’s Natrium Reactor 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/nrc-dockets-construction-permit-application-terrapowers-natrium-reactor
- What is High-Assay Low-Enriched Uranium (HALEU)? 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-high-assay-low-enriched-uranium-haleu
- 4 Crucial Steps the Biden-Harris Administration is Taking to Secure a Nuclear Fuel Supply Chain 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/4-crucial-steps-biden-harris-administration-taking-secure-nuclear-fuel-supply-chain
- New DOE and NRC Agreement Will Lead to Faster Deployment and Licensing of U.S. Nuclear Technologies 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/new-doe-and-nrc-agreement-will-lead-faster-deployment-and-licensing-us-nuclear
- What are Small Modular Reactors (SMRs)? 

o https://www.iaea.org/newscenter/news/what-are-small-modular-reactors-smrs
- Small modular reactors 

o https://www.iaea.org/topics/small-modular-reactors

34



Nuclear Energy Discussion 

Nuclear energy power plants including their establishment is primarily governed by the United 
States Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC).  The NRC has a significant amount of control 
over the permitting and operation of such plants.  Companies who wish to get involved in 
nuclear must directly work with the NRC through the process of obtaining an “Early site permit 
(ESP).”  An example of this process can be found at the following NRC website: 
https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/esp/north-anna.html

This website illustrates the process for the North Anna Site that was submitted by Dominion 
Nuclear North Anna, LLC.  It includes application information, a review schedule, a safety 
evaluation report, a final environmental impact statement, the North Anna Early Site Permit, and 
contacts.  There is also a “combined license process” which includes construction and operation 
approvals.  The applicants must provide detailed plans for the plant’s design, construction, and 
operation as well as safety measures.  It is the duty of the NRC to thoroughly review the 
submissions.  The following website includes a list of combined license applications for new 
reactors: https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/col.html

An example of a combined license can be found at this link for the North Anna, Unit 3 site: 
https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/col/north-anna.html.  The application 
materials include: referenced documents; application information; review schedule; safety 
evaluations; early site permit; final supplemental environmental impact statement; combined 
licenses; related application information; and contacts. In the combined license process, the 
application is reviewed and includes a public participation process, safety and environmental 
reviews and compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA).  The NRC also is 
involved in design certification, construction and operation, and post-license oversight.  

It appears at this time that the permitting process for nuclear power plants including modular is a 
multi-governmental complex process largely governed by the NRC.  The Iowa legislature 
appears to have considered two study bills (House Study Bill 555 and Senate Study Bill 3075) 
which would designate modular nuclear as an alternative energy production facility in Iowa.  For 
more information, there is a January 25, 2024 article written by Wally Taylor entitled “Iowa 
Utilities bill includes a good idea – and a lost cause” 
https://www.bleedingheartland.com/2024/01/25/iowa-utilities-board-bill-includes-a-good-idea-
and-a-lost-cause/

Role of the County 

Presently, under Section 3.03.3 of the Zoning Ordinance, nuclear energy generation could be 
administratively interpreted as a utility use that is eligible for conditional use permit 
consideration by the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment in the General Industrial (GI) 
Zoning District.  However, as the same section reads “the table in subsection 3.03.4 may be 
updated pursuant to the procedure outlined in Section 2.03 from time to time to reflect legislative 
acceptance or rejection of the interpretations of the zoning director.” (p. 31). 

35



As nuclear and modular nuclear technological systems are evolving, Woodbury County is in a 
position to legislatively address the county’s nuclear policy for clarification.  At this time, in 
terms of county zoning the question is, do the citizens of Woodbury County view nuclear as a 
viable alternative energy option for the future?  If so, are there areas within the county that would 
be most appropriate for nuclear power generation?  Depending on the input from the public 
stakeholders and the industry, the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance could potentially be 
updated to clearly clarify the permitting of future nuclear projects.   

Based on the regulations as presented by the NRC and the State of Iowa including the Iowa 
Utilities Board, the county could choose to add “Nuclear Energy Generation” as a land use in 
Section 3.03.4 (Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses…) under the “Utilities” category as 
either a “Conditional Use” or a “Principal Allowed Use” in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning 
District in the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance.  Regardless of either a conditional use or a 
principal allowed use, the applicants must go through a rigorous permitting process through other 
levels of government.   

It is apparent that nuclear energy is significant, complex, and consequential.  As directed by the 
Board of Supervisors, the work of the Zoning Commission is to examine nuclear energy as an 
option for zoning.  Hence, a Zoning Commission public hearing process can be employed to seek 
public comments and consider potential recommendations including possibly legislatively 
adding “nuclear energy generation” formally as an option to the Zoning Ordinance’s land use 
summary table.   

Stakeholder Comments: 

On July 26, 2024, a letter was sent to over 120 Woodbury County stakeholders ranging from 
state, city, county and township officials, utilities, and other stakeholder organizations.  They 
were requested to offer their initial thoughts about nuclear energy.  As of August 22, 2024, a total 
of five (5) comments have been received for the record.  The letter is available on the subsequent 
page followed by the comments. 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING 
ORDINANCE TO INCLUDE THE USE OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES AS AN ENERGY OPTION 
IN WOODBURY COUNTY AND TO ALLOW FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF SUCH FACILITIES IN 
INDUSTRIAL ZONING AREAS AND TO AMEND PORTIONS OF: THE TABLE OF CONTENTS; TO 
ADD ANEW SECTION ENTITLED SECTION 5.09: NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES CONDITIONAL 
USE; AND TO INCLUDE THE RENUMBERING OF PAGE NUMBERS. 

WHEREAS, WOODBURY COUNTY IS COMMITTED TO SUPPORTING SUSTAINABLE AND 
RELIABLE ENERGY SOLUTIONS THAT ENSURE LONG-TERM ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECONOMIC 
BENEFITS FOR ITS RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES; AND 

WHEREAS, NUCLEAR ENERGY IS RECOGNIZED AS A EFFECTIVE METHOD OF PRODUCING 
BASELOAD ENERGY THAT IS CARBON-FREE AND CAPABLE OF MEETING THE GROWING 
DEMAND FOR CLEAN ENERGY IN BOTH RESIDENTIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SECTORS; AND 

WHEREAS, ADVANCEMENTS IN NUCLEAR TECHNOLOGY, INCLUDING SMALL MODULAR 
REACTORS (SMRS) AND OTHER INNOVATIVE DESIGNS, PROVIDE A SAFER, MORE EFFICIENT, 
AND MORE FLEXIBLE OPTION FOR ENERGY GENERATION COMPARED TO TRADITIONAL 
NUCLEAR PLANTS, MAKING THEM A VIABLE ADDITION TO THE COUNTY'S ENERGY PORTFOLIO; 
AND 

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ACKNOWLEDGES THE POTENTIAL FOR ECONOMIC GROWTH 
THROUGH THE DEVELOPMENT OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES, INCLUDING JOB CREATION, 
INCREASED INVESTMENT IN LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE, AND A BROADENED TAX BASE; AND 

WHEREAS, WOODBURY COUNTY SEEKS TO DIVERSIFY ITS ENERGY RESOURCES TO 
PROMOTE RESILIENCE, ENERGY INDEPENDENCE, AND STABILITY IN ENERGY PRICING FOR ITS 
RESIDENTS AND INDUSTRIES; AND 

WHEREAS, THE SITING OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES IN GENERAL INDUSTRIAL ZONING 
AREAS WILL ALLOW FOR BETTER LAND USE PLANNING BY UTILIZING SPACES ALREADY 
DESIGNATED FOR LARGE-SCALE INDUSTRIAL OPERATIONS, MINIMIZING POTENTIAL 
CONFLICTS WITH RESIDENTIAL OR AGRICULTURAL AREAS, AND ENSURING THE AVAILABILITY 
OF APPROPRIATE INFRASTRUCTURE TO SUPPORT SUCH FACILITIES; AND 

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY IS COMMITTED TO ENSURING THAT ANY NUCLEAR ENERGY 
FACILITIES COMPLY WITH FEDERAL AND STATE SAFETY STANDARDS, AS WELL AS LOCAL 
REGULATIONS, TO PROTECT THE HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE OF THE PUBLIC AND THE 
ENVIRONMENT; AND 

WHEREAS, THE PASSAGE OF THIS ORDINANCE WILL PROVIDE THE FRAMEWORK FOR THE 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES 
WITHIN INDUSTRIAL ZONES, ENSURING THAT EACH PROJECT IS CONSIDERED ON A CASE-BY-
CASE BASIS WITH INPUT FROM THE COMMUNITY, REGULATORY BODIES, AND EXPERTS; 

43



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

SUPPORT FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY: WOODBURY COUNTY AFFIRMS ITS SUPPORT FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES AS PART OF ITS LONG-TERM ENERGY 
STRATEGY TO MEET CLEAN ENERGY GOALS AND FOSTER ECONOMIC GROWTH. 

DESIGNATION OF GENERAL AND LIMITED INDUSTRIAL ZONES: THE COUNTY APPROVES THE 
AMENDMENT TO ITS ZONING ORDINANCE TO ALLOW NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES AS A 
CONDITIONAL USE IN GENERAL AND LIMITED INDUSTRIAL ZONES, ENSURING THAT SUCH 
FACILITIES ARE APPROPRIATELY LOCATED WITHIN AREAS DESIGNED FOR INDUSTRIAL 
ACTIVITIES. 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCESS: THE COUNTY WILL ESTABLISH A TRANSPARENT AND 
RIGOROUS PROCESS FOR THE EVALUATION OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR NUCLEAR 
ENERGY FACILITIES, WHICH WILL INCLUDE ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS, SAFETY 
REVIEWS, AND PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ADDRESS ANY CONCERNS. 

COMMITMENT TO SAFETY AND COMPLIANCE: THE COUNTY WILL ENSURE THAT ALL NUCLEAR 
ENERGY FACILITIES COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL REGULATIONS, 
PARTICULARLY REGARDING SAFETY, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, AND EMERGENCY 
PREPAREDNESS. 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND EDUCATION: THE COUNTY WILL WORK TO INFORM AND ENGAGE 
THE PUBLIC ON THE BENEFITS AND SAFETY MEASURES ASSOCIATED WITH NUCLEAR 
ENERGY, PROVIDING OPPORTUNITIES FOR COMMUNITY INPUT THROUGHOUT THE PROCESS. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 

Amendment #1: 

On page 39: To add the following line-item use language within zoning ordinance Section 3.03.4 Land 
Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Utilities” category:

“Nuclear Energy Facilities”.  With placement of the letter “C” within the (Limited Industrial), and GI 
(General Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line-item use. 

On page 104: To add the following definition, “Nuclear Facility” as definition 112 to Article 6. Definitions. 
Section 6.02: Definitions as “112. Nuclear Energy Facility” includes any facility designed for the 
generation of electricity or power through nuclear fission or fusion, as well as any associated storage or 
handling of nuclear materials and waste in compliance with federal and state regulatory requirements.” 

Amendment #2: 

In the Table of Contents, on page iii: To add “Section 5.09: Nuclear Energy Facilities Conditional Use” 
under the Article 5, Supplemental Requirements category ……(PAGE NUMBER). 

Amendment #3: 

Beginning on page 92, to re-designate or re-number the definitions in Article 6. Definitions. Section 6.02: 
Definitions 112 through 191.  The purpose is to add “Nuclear Energy Facilities” as definition 112 thereby 
pushing the existing definitions 112 through 191 ahead one position with Article 6. Definitions. Section 
6.02 now including definitions 1 through 192.   

Beginning on page 82, to amend Article 6. Definitions by moving the start page from page____ to page 
____. 

44



Amendment #4: 

Beginning on Page 97, to add the following section to be known as “Section 5.09: Nuclear Energy 
Facilities Conditional Use.” 

Section 5.09: Nuclear Energy Facilities Conditional Use 

1. Purpose.  This section is established to regulate the siting, development, and operation of 
nuclear energy facilities, including but not limited to nuclear power plants and small modular 
reactors (SMRs), within Woodbury County. The intent is to ensure public health, safety, 
environmental protection, and compliance with federal and state regulations, while facilitating 
orderly land use and development. 

2. Definition.  For the purposes of this ordinance, a “Nuclear Energy Facility” includes any facility 
designed for the generation of electricity or power through nuclear fission or fusion, as well as any 
associated storage or handling of nuclear materials and waste in compliance with federal and 
state regulatory requirements. 

3. General Requirements for Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Approval 

A. Compliance with Federal and State Regulations
(1) All nuclear energy facilities must comply with regulations set forth by the 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC), the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), and the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR), including but 
not limited to licensing, environmental impact assessments, waste 
management, and operational safety. 

(2) Applicants must provide evidence of approval or pending approval from the 
NRC, including required licensing documentation for the proposed facility. 

B. Environmental Impact
(1) Applicants shall conduct a comprehensive Environmental Impact Statement 

(EIS) in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and 
state-level environmental regulations, demonstrating minimal adverse effects 
on air and water quality, soil, wildlife habitats, and surrounding land uses. 

(2) The applicant must submit a mitigation plan outlining how environmental 
impacts will be managed and minimized, including measures for water usage, 
waste containment, and radiation control. 

C. Safety, Security, and Emergency Response
(1) A detailed Emergency Response Plan must be submitted, reviewed, and 

approved by Woodbury County’s Emergency Management Department in 
coordination with state and federal authorities. This plan must address potential 
radiation leaks, natural disasters, fire, and other hazards. 

(2) The facility shall include 24/7 security, perimeter fencing, surveillance systems, 
and controlled access points as required by NRC guidelines for nuclear 
facilities. 

(3) The facility operator must provide ongoing safety training for county emergency 
services personnel and coordinate regular emergency response drills. 

D. Nuclear Waste Storage and Transportation

45



(1) The storage and transportation of nuclear materials and waste must be in full 
compliance with federal standards outlined by the NRC and Department of 
Transportation (DOT), including regulations regarding the safe handling, 
containment, and transportation of radioactive materials. 

(2) A long-term waste management plan shall be submitted as part of the CUP 
application, detailing storage solutions, transportation routes, and potential 
impacts on local infrastructure and communities. 

E. Decommissioning Plan
(1) A detailed decommissioning plan must be submitted, outlining procedures for 

safely shutting down the facility at the end of its operational life. The plan shall 
include financial assurance mechanisms (such as bonds or escrow accounts) 
to ensure the proper removal of radioactive materials and the restoration of the 
site to its original condition. 

4. Conditions for Approval
A. The County may impose additional conditions, restrictions, or safeguards to ensure 

compatibility with surrounding land uses and protect the health, safety, and welfare of the 
public. 

B. Approval of the CUP may be conditioned upon periodic review by the County to verify 
ongoing compliance with applicable regulations and conditions of the permit. 

5. Revocation of Permit
A. The conditional use permit may be revoked by the County if the facility is found to be in 

violation of any applicable federal, state, or local regulation, or if any conditions of 
approval are not met. The County reserves the right to impose corrective actions or 
suspend operations as necessary to protect public welfare. 

THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

________________________  
Matthew Ung, Chairman  

________________________  
Daniel Bittinger II, Vice-Chairman 

________________________  
Mark Nelson 

Attest:   ________________________  
Keith Radig 

______________________________  ________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor  Jeremy Taylor 

Adoption Timeline: 
Date of Public Hearing and First Reading____________  
Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading____________ 
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading____________ 
Date of Adoption_____________ 
Published/Effective Date____________ 

46



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – SEPTEMBER 18, 2024
THREE PRIVATE WIND TURBINES – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): L & K Tabke Holdings 

LLC
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit
Zoning District: Agricultural 

Preservation (AP)
Total Acres: 76.02
Current Use: Agricultural
Proposed Use: Agricultural (Wind 

Power)
Pre-application Meeting: August, 2024
Application Date: September 1, 2024
Legal Notice Date: September 21, 2024
Neighbor(s) Notice Date: September 18, 2024
Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

September 4, 2024

Zoning Commission 
Review:

September 23, 2024

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

October 7, 2024

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 884420300005
Township/Range: T88N R44W 

(Wolf Creek)
Section: 20
Quarter: N ½ of the SW 

1/4
Zoning District: Agricultural 

Preservation 
(AP)

Floodplain: Zone X (Not in 
floodplain)

Property 
Address:

3112 195th St., 
Moville, IA 51039 
(Abutting Parcel)

CONTENTS
Summary
Aerial Map / Site Plan 
Excerpt
Review Requirements
Review Criteria
Application Materials
Legal Notification
Public Comments
Stakeholder Comments
Supporting Information

SUMMARY
L & K Tabke Holdings, LLC (Kathy Tabke) has filed a conditional use permit application for the installation and use of three (3) 100’ 
wind turbines to reduce the electrical costs on the farm.  The proposed locations are around 5.2 miles southeast of Moville which is on 
the south side of 195th Street and east of Jasper Avenue.  The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District 
and “Electric wind generator (Private use)” is classified as a “conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance which is eligible for review by the Zoning Commission and for consideration for approval by the Board of Adjustment for a 
conditional use permit.  This proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journals legal section on September 21, 2024.  The 
neighbors within 500 FT were duly notified via a September 18, 2024 letter about the October 7, 2024 Board of Adjustment public 
hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been requested to comment.  
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal can meet the criteria for 
approval of the conditional use permit.
AERIAL MAP SITE PLAN EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION & SUGGESTED MOTION
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal can meet the criteria for 
approval of the conditional use permit.  Motion to recommend approval the conditional use permit request to the Board of Adjustment.

47



2

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

Attached.

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance includes the Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Zoning District as a location authorized for a conditional use pending review by the Zoning Commission and approval by the Board of 
Adjustment.    

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The proposed use of the three (3) wind turbines on the 100 FT support tower is compatible with the Woodbury County’s Comprehensive Plan 2040 
including to “support landowners’ individual choices to implement renewable energy infrastructure for personal and private use” (p. 127).

(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf )

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Based on the site plan and information presented, this project does not appear to have significant impacts on adjacent properties 
including the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utilities facilities, and other factors affecting public health, safety, 
and the general welfare of the public.  

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

48



3

STAFF ANALYSIS:

There does not appear to be significant impacts to the immediate neighborhood including impacts to the orderly use, development and 
improvement of surrounding property.  

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The property owner(s) will need to work out the details with the local utility in terms of their respective interconnection agreement. 

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

There does not appear to be any significant impact determined.  

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This proposed conditional use is an optional feature that has been added to the property for the benefit of the property owner(s).

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The appearance of a private wind turbine tower speaks for itself.  At a height of 100 FT, there likely is no level of building, site design, 
landscaping, and screening available to conceal its effects.  

49



4 

APPLICATION

50



5 51



6 52



7 53



8 54



9 55



10 56



11 57



12 58



13 59



14 60



15 61



16 62



17 63



18 64



19 65



20 66



21

LEGAL NOTIFICATION
 To be published in Sioux City Journal on September 21, 2024 for the Board of Adjustment’s public hearing.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Property Owners within 500 Feet: 7

Notification Letter Date: September 18, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: October 7, 2024, 6:00 PM

Phone Inquiries: 1 (Anthony Ashley)

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS
Kathy J. Tabke Revocable Trust & 
Lane D. Tabke Revocable Trust

3112 195th Street Moville IA 51039-8120 No comments received.

L & K Tabke Holdings LLC 3112 195th St. Moville IA 51039-8120 No comments received.
Delbert D. Spink Revocable Trust 16796 Birchview Road Park Rapids MN 56470 No comments received.
2B, LLC C/O Greg Brandt 839 Meadow Dr. Moville IA 51039 No comments received.
Jeanette M. Kummer 1977 Jasper Ave. Moville IA 51039-8191 No comments received.
Todd Tabke 34679 C70 Kingsley IA 51028 No comments received.
Anthony Ashley 3346 170th St. Correctionville IA 51016 Question about the CUP process for private turbine.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments received.
FIBERCOMM: No comments received.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments received.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments received.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments received.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received.
LONGLINES: No comments received.
LUMEN: No comments received.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments received.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the attached proposal for MEC electric and we have no conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 

9/4/24. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments received.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments received.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments received.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 9/10/24.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments received.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments received.
WIATEL: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this application. – Neil Stockfleth, 9/5/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments received.

67



22

PICTOMETRY 

68



23 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

69



24 

ZONING MAP

70



25 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

71



26

ELEVATION MAP

SOIL REPORT(S)

72



27 

SOIL MAP(S)

73



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – SEPTEMBER 18, 2024
COMMUNICATIONS TOWER – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Andrew Bobrytzke obo 

American Towers LLC / 
Bradley J. Kobold Trust

Application Type: Conditional Use Permit
Zoning District: General Industrial (GI)
Total Acres: 36.9
Current Use: Farming
Proposed Use: Farming w/ Wireless Tower
Pre-application 
Meeting:

April 23, 2024

Application Date: August 23, 2024
Legal Notice Date: September 21, 2024
Neighbor(s) Notice 
Date:

September 18, 2024

Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

September 3, 2024

Zoning Commission 
Review:

September 23, 2024

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

October 7, 2024

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 874720400004
Township/Range: T87N R47W (Liberty)
Section: 20
Quarter: SE ¼ of the SE ¼ 
Zoning District: General Industrial (GI)
Floodplain: Portions in the Zone A
Property 
Address:

2593 Barker Ave., Salix, IA 
51052

CONTENTS
Summary
Aerial Map / Site Plan Excerpt
Review Requirements
Review Criteria
Application Materials
Legal Notification
Public Comments
Stakeholder Comments
Supporting Information

SUMMARY
Andrew Bobrytzke on behalf of American Towers LLC and the Bradley J. Kobold Trust have filed a conditional use permit application to 
request to construct a 250’ self-support wireless communications tower to replace an existing tower from the area on Parcel 
#874720400004.  The proposed location is about one (1) half mile west of the Salix which is on the north side of 260th Street and west 
of Barker Avenue.  The parcel is located in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District and “telecommunication towers” are classified as 
a “conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance which is eligible for review by the Zoning Commission 
and for consideration for approval by the Board of Adjustment for a conditional use permit.  This proposal has been noticed in the Sioux 
City Journals legal section on September 21, 2024  The neighbors within one (1) mile were duly notified via a September 18, 2024 
letter about the October 7, 2024 Board of Adjustment public hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, 
utilities, and organizations have been requested to comment.  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the 
Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval of the conditional use request.  It is the recommendation of 
staff to approve the proposal.
AERIAL MAP SITE PLAN EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION & SUGGESTED MOTION
Staff recommends approval of the proposal.  Suggested Motion: motion to recommend approval of the construction and use of the communication 
tower on the property identified as Parcel #874720400004.

74



2 

REVIEW REQUIREMENTS - IOWA CODE SECTION 8C.3 ( https://www.legis.iowa.gov/docs/code/8c.pdf )

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS CANNOT:

In order to ensure uniformity across this state with respect to the consideration of every application, and notwithstanding 
any other provision to the contrary, an authority shall not do any of the following: 

1. Require an applicant to submit information about, or evaluate an applicant’s business decisions with respect to, the applicant’s 
designed service, customer demand for service, or quality of the applicant’s service to or from a particular area or site, but may 
require propagation maps solely for the purpose of identifying the location of the coverage or capacity gap or need for 
applications for new towers in an area zoned residential. 

2. a. Evaluate an application based on the availability of other potential locations for the placement or construction of a tower or 
transmission equipment. b. Require the applicant to establish other options for collocation instead of the construction of a new 
tower or modification of an existing tower or existing base station that constitutes a substantial change to an existing tower or 
existing base station. c. Notwithstanding paragraph “b”, an authority shall require an applicant applying for the construction of a 
new tower to provide an explanation regarding the reason for choosing the proposed location and the reason the applicant did not 
choose collocation. The explanation shall include a sworn statement from an individual who has responsibility over placement of 
the tower attesting that collocation within the area determined by the applicant to meet the applicant’s radio frequency 
engineering requirements for the placement of a site would not result in the same mobile service functionality, coverage, and 
capacity, is technically infeasible, or is economically burdensome to the applicant. 

3. Dictate the type of transmission equipment or technology to be used by the applicant or discriminate between different types of 
infrastructure or technology. 

4. a. Require the removal of existing towers, base stations, or transmission equipment, wherever located, as a condition to 
approval of an application. b. Notwithstanding paragraph “a”, the authority may adopt reasonable rules regarding removal of 
abandoned towers or transmission equipment. 

5. Impose environmental testing, sampling, or monitoring requirements, or other compliance measures, for radio frequency 
emissions from transmission equipment that are categorically excluded under the federal communications commission’s rules for 
radio frequency emissions pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §1.1307(b)(1). 

6. Establish or enforce regulations or procedures for radio frequency signal strength or the adequacy of service quality. 

7. Reject an application, in whole or in part, based on perceived or alleged environmental effects of radio frequency emissions, as 
provided in 47 U.S.C. §332(c)(7)(B)(iv). 

8. Prohibit the placement of emergency power systems that comply with federal and state environmental requirements. 

9. Charge an application fee, consulting fee, or other fee associated with the submission, review, processing, or approval of an 
application, unless the fee charged is in compliance with this section. Fees imposed by an authority or by a third-party entity 
providing review or technical consultation to the authority shall be based on actual, direct, and reasonable administrative costs 
incurred for the review, processing, and approval of an application. In no case shall total charges and fees exceed five hundred 
dollars for an eligible facilities request or three thousand dollars for an application for a new tower, for the initial placement or 
installation of transmission equipment on a wireless support structure, for a modification of an existing tower or existing base 
station that constitutes a substantial change to an existing tower or base station, or any other application to construct or place 
transmission equipment that does not constitute an eligible facilities request. An authority or any third-party entity shall not include 
within its charges any travel expenses incurred in the review of an application for more than one trip to the authority’s jurisdiction, 
and an applicant shall not be required to pay or reimburse an authority for consultant or other third-party fees based on a 
contingency-based or result-based arrangement. 

10. Impose surety requirements, including bonds, escrow deposits, letters of credit, or any other type of financial surety, to ensure 
that abandoned or unused towers or transmission equipment can be removed, unless requirements are competitively neutral, 
nondiscriminatory, reasonable in amount, and commensurate with the historical record for local facilities and structures that are 
abandoned. 

11. Condition the approval of an application on the applicant’s agreement to provide space on or near the tower, base station, or 
wireless support structure for authority or local governmental or nongovernmental services at less than the market rate for such 
space or to provide other services via the structure or facilities at less than the market rate for such services. 

12. Limit the duration of the approval of an application, except that construction of the approved structure or facilities shall be 
commenced within two years of final approval, including the disposition of any appeals, and diligently pursued to completion. 

13. Discriminate on the basis of the ownership, including ownership by the authority, of any property, structure, or tower when 
promulgating rules or procedures for siting wireless facilities or for evaluating applications.

75



3

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

Attached

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This conditional use permit requested is authorized in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District. 

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The granting of this request will assist with adding to the communication infrastructure of the surrounding area, it complies with the Woodbury 
County Comprehensive Plan 2040, Chapter 4: Public Infrastructure and Utilities 
(https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf )

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The plans submitted comply with the parameters of Section 5.05 of the Zoning Ordinance. This proposal does not appear to adversely 
impact the neighborhood, traffic, parking, utility facilities, public health, safety and general welfare. The proposed tower meets the setbacks 
from the property lines with either meeting or exceeding 250 feet from the property lines (see site plan).

76



4

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The plans submitted comply with the parameters of Section 5.05 of the Zoning Ordinance. This proposal is compatible with the neighborhood 
as noted in Criteria 3.

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The plans submitted comply with the zoning ordinance.  There have been no concerns presented from the stakeholders.

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This proposal does not appear to significantly impact the items as referenced in Criteria #6.

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This CUP request could be interpreted as a contribution to the local communication infrastructure.

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The design of the tower and its proposed use clearly distinguishes itself as a communication structure. The plans submitted comply with 
the Zoning Ordinance. Under Iowa Code 8C, local governments cannot “dictate the type of transmission equipment or technology to be 
used, or discriminate between different types of infrastructure or technology.”

77



5 78



6 

APPLICATION

79



7 80



8 81



9 82



10 83



11 84



12 85



13 86



14 87



15 88



16 89



17 90



18 91



19 92



20 93



21 94



22 95



23 96



24 97



25 98



26 99



27 100



28 101



29 102



30 103



31 104



32 105



33 106



34 107



35 108



36 109



37 110



38 111



39 112



40 113



41 114



42 115



43 116



44 117



45 118



46 119



47 120



48

LEGAL NOTIFICATION
 To be published in Sioux City Journal on September 21, 2024 for the Board of Adjustment’s public hearing.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Total Property Owners within one (1) mile via Certified 
Abstractor’s Listing:

35 Deed Holders/Owners of 180 Properties  

Notification Letter Date: September 18, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: October 7, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 0

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS
SENT TO “CURRENT PROPERTY OWNERS” OR TO THE FOLLOWING: No comments received.
Fred L. & Margaret A. 
Godfredson Revocable Trust

2403 Barker Ave. Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054-8037 No comments received.

George & Jodi Nelson 2514 Buchanan Ave. Salix IA 51052 No comments received.
CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC 4 Parkway North 

Suite 400
Deerfield IL 60015 No comments received. 

Lindgren-Baker Farm LC PO Box 6 Algona IA 50511 No comments received.
Three Bee's LC 2201 East 4th St. Sioux City IA 51101 No comments received.
MidAmerican Energy Co. PO Box 657 Des Moines IA 50303-0657 No comments received.
Larry Eisenhauser Trust 1801 Glen Ellen Rd. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments received.
Barbara D. Wiggs 409 Beall St. PO Box 

121
Sloan IA 51055 No comments received. 

Barbara D. Wiggs PO Box 121 Sloan IA 51055 No comments received.
C & NW RR Co 400 W Madison St. Chicago IL 60606 No comments received.
Chicago Northwestern R R Co 400 W Madison St. Chicago IL 60606 No comments received.
Michael Lee & Vicki Jo Smith 
Christine & Matthew Cappetta

2575 Barker Ave. Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054-8084 No comments received. 

Bradley J. Kobold Trust 211 7th St. Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054 No comments received. 

United States of America Real 
Estate Division Omaha District

106 S. 15th St. Omaha NE 68102-1618 No comments received.

Irwin A. Grau Revocable Trust, 
Wilma C. Grau Revocable 
Trust

433 E Maple Lawton IA 51030 No comments received. 

A & A Cattle Company Inc PO Box 767 Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054-0767 No comments received. 

Richard John Glen Patterson 2708 Benton Ave. Salix IA 51052-8039 No comments received.
Dennis Brouillette 605 Aspen St. Salix IA 51052-8060 No comments received.
Randall T. Beck Revocable 
Trust

201 1st St. Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054 No comments received. 

Randall T. Beck Revocable 
Trust

PO Box 845 Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054-0845 No comments received. 

Richard J. G. Patterson PO Box 108 Salix IA 51052-0108 No comments received.
Dennis Brouillette & Andrew J. 
& Katherine L. Brouillette

101 Liberty LN Salix IA 51052-8060 No comments received. 

121



49 

Andrew J. & Katherine L. 
Brouillette

101 Liberty LN Salix IA 51052-8060 No comments received. 

PNW, LLC c/o Daniel G. Lee 2568 Barnett Ave. Salix IA 51052 No comments received.
Barbara Oeherking Revocable 
Trust

Box 168 Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054 No comments received. 

Carlye Erika Diana Patterson PO Box 108 Salix IA 51052 No comments received.
Michael L. Patterson 1866 Highway 141, 

Box 44
Sloan IA 51055-0044 No comments received. 

Michael L. Patterson Box 44 Sloan IA 51055-0044 No comments received.
Michael T. & Patricia J. Ping 2550 Benton Ave. Salix IA 51052-8037 No comments received.
Daniel G. & Barbara J. Lee 1405 260th St. Salix IA 51052 No comments received.
Daniel Gordon Lee 1405 260th St. Salix IA 51052 No comments received.
William J. Smith 5309 Hwy 75 North 

Lot 44
Sioux City IA 51108 No comments received.

State of Iowa Property 
Management Section

800 Lincoln Way Ames IA 50010 No comments received. 

Nora Reynolds Lerer 415 Sherman St. Healdsburg CA 95448 No comments received.
D & H Himmel Farms LLC & 
ML Kimmel Farms LLC: 
Kriener Farm Management 
ATTN: Dan Kriener

4110 Floyd Blvd Sioux City IA 51108 No comments received. 

Iowa State Conservation 800 Lincoln Way Ames IA 50010 No comments received.
Northern Natural Gas PO Box 3330 Omaha NE 68103-0330 No comments received.
Kimmel Family Farms, LLC & 
Kent W. Ivener Living Trust

111 Doral Lane Dakota 
Dunes

SD 57049 No comments received. 

Mark W. Maupin c/o Bob Cook 705 Winfield Cir Sergeant 
Bluff

IA 51054 No comments received. 

Union Pacific Railroad 1400 Douglas Stop 
1640

Omaha NE 68179-1640 No comments received.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments received.
FIBERCOMM: No comments received.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments received.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments received.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments received.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received.
LONGLINES: No comments received.
LUMEN: No comments received.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No sir.  No issues from us here.  We don’t have any assets on that property.  A mile or so east  and 

west we do, but not there.  Thank you for following up. – Bryan Ferguson, 9/18/24. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the attached rezoning application for MEC electric and we have, No conflicts. –

Casey Meinen, 9/4/24. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments received.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments received.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments received.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 9/10/24
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments received.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments received.
WIATEL: No comments received.
WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: None at this time. – Daniel Heissel, 9/3/24
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have reviewed the site and have an approved driveway permit for access to the new tower. The fall 

zone for the tower lies outside of the right of way.   I have no concerns with the proposed land use at 
this location. – Mark Nahra, 9/11/24 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments.  Thank you. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 9/3/24
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this project. – Neil Stockfleth, 9/5/24

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments received.

122



50

PICTOMETRY 

123



51 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

124



52 125



53 

ZONING MAP

126



54 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

127



55

ELEVATION MAP

SOIL REPORT(S)

128



56 

SOIL MAP(S)

129



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:  _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

BACKGROUND:

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:

ACTION REQUIRED:

Approve Resolution         Approve MotionApprove Ordinance

Other:  Informational  Attachments

130



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE?

Yes No       

RECOMMENDATION:

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.

131




